
University of Missouri, St. Louis University of Missouri, St. Louis 

IRL @ UMSL IRL @ UMSL 

UMSLCAB - UMSL’s Political Science Millennial 
Era Saint Louis Local Curated Area Budgets Political Science Department 

1-1-1996 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, 1995 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, 1995 

City of Arnold 

Follow this and additional works at: https://irl.umsl.edu/cab 

Recommended Citation Recommended Citation 
City of Arnold, "Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, 1995" (1996). UMSLCAB - UMSL’s Political 
Science Millennial Era Saint Louis Local Curated Area Budgets. 123. 
https://irl.umsl.edu/cab/123 

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the Political Science Department at IRL @ UMSL. It has 
been accepted for inclusion in UMSLCAB - UMSL’s Political Science Millennial Era Saint Louis Local Curated Area 
Budgets by an authorized administrator of IRL @ UMSL. For more information, please contact marvinh@umsl.edu. 

https://irl.umsl.edu/
https://irl.umsl.edu/cab
https://irl.umsl.edu/cab
https://irl.umsl.edu/polisci
https://irl.umsl.edu/cab?utm_source=irl.umsl.edu%2Fcab%2F123&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
https://irl.umsl.edu/cab/123?utm_source=irl.umsl.edu%2Fcab%2F123&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
mailto:marvinh@umsl.edu


I 

-
CITY of ARNOLD 

MISSOURI 

COMPREHENSIVE 
ANNUAL 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

For The Fiscal Year Ended 
August 31, 1995 



Table of Contents 

Exhibit Pages 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION: 

Letter of Transmittal I- Vil 

Organizational Chart VIII 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement IX 
List of Principal Officials X 

FINANCIAL SECTION: 

Report of Independent Accountants 1 

General Purpose Financial Statements : 
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and 

Account Groups 2 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in 
Fund Balance - Governmental Fund Type -
General Fund 2 3 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Governmental 
Fund Type - General Fund 3 4 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
In Accumulated Deficit/Fund Balance -
Proprietary Fund Type and Similar Trust Fund 4 5 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type -
Enterprise Fund 5 6 

Notes to Financial Statements 7-29 

Supplemental Schedules: 
General Fund: 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Governmental 
Fund Type - General Fund A-1 30-31 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System 
(LAGERS) : 

Ten-Year Trend Information (Required Supplementary 
Information) : 

Analysis of Funding Progress A-2 32 

Expenses by Type A-3 33 

Revenues by Source A-4 34 



Table of Contents, Continued 

Exhibit Pages 

Supplemental Schedules, continued: 
Trust and Agency Funds: 

Combined Balance Sheet B-1 35 

Police Pension Trust Fund: 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in 

Fund Balance B-2 36 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System 
(LAGERS): 

Ten-Year Trend Information (Required Supplementary 
Information) : 

Analysis of Funding Progress B-3 37 

Expenses by Type B-4 38 

Revenues by Source B-5 39 

Deferred Compensation Agency Fund : 
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities B-6 40 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 
Comparative Schedules of General Fixed Assets by 

Source C-1 41 

Schedule of Fixed Assets - By Function and 
Activity C-2 42 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets -
By Function and Activity C-3 43 

Supplemental Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance D-1 44 

Table 

STATISTICAL SECTION: 

General Governmental Expenditures by Function 45 

General Governmental Revenues by Source 2 46 

General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source 2A 47 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 3 48 



Table of Contents, Continued 

STATISTICAL SECTION, continued: 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable 
Property 

Property Tax Rates per $100 Assessed Value -
Direct and Overlapping Governments 

Principal Taxpayers 

Special Assessment Billings and Collections 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded 
Debt - General Obligation Bonds 

Revenue Bond Coverage - Enterprise Fund 

Demographic Statistics 

Property Value and Construction 

Miscellaneous Statistics 

SINGLE AUDIT : 

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
Based on an Audit of General Purpose Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance With 
Government Auditing Standards 

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
With Specific Requirements Applicable to Major 
Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
With the General Requirements Applicable to Major 
Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

Report of Independent Accountants on the Internal 
Control Structure Based on an Audit of the General 
Purpose Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
With Government Auditing Standards 

Report of Independent Accountants on the Internal 
Control Structure Used in Administering Federal 
Financial Assistance Programs 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Table 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Pages 

49 

50 

51 

52 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58-59 

60 

61-62 

63 

64-65 

66-68 

69 



INTRODUCTORY 
SECTION 



.-· _..:- , 

- --· Qlit~ of i=--=rtt:..:....:..n_:_.:l~:____ ______ _ 
2101 JEFFCO BOULEVARD• ARNOLD, MISSOURI 63010 

Finance Director 
(314) 296-6533 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council, and 
The Citizens of Arnold, Missouri 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

January 30, 1996 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Arnold, Missouri for the fiscal year ended 
August 31 , 1995, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the 
best of my knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported 
in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various 
funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the City's financial activities have been included. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, 
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the City's 
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose 
financial statements, the individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well 
as the auditors' report on the financial statements and schedules. The statistical section includes 
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis . 

The City is required to undergo a single audit in conformance with the provisions of the Single Audit 
Act of 1984 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, 11 Audits of State and Local 
Governments. 11 Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of federal financial 
assistance, findings and recommendations, and auditor's reports on the internal control structure and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, are included in the single audit section of this report . 

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City of Arnold. The City provides a full 
range of services including police protection; health and sanitation services; construction and 
maintenance of streets and infrastructure; parks and recreation services; city planning and building 
inspection; and administration. In addition to general government activities, the City exercises 
oversight of the Sewer System and the Police Pension Plan; therefore, these activities are included in 
the reporting entity. 



Economic Condition and Outlook: 

The City is centrally located on the eastern border of the State of Missouri, south of the Meramec 
River at its confluence with the Mississippi River. The central business district of the City of 
St. Louis is about 17 miles to the north. Interstate Highway 55, U.S . Highway 61-67, State 
Highways 141 and 231 provide access to St. Louis City and St. Louis County. 

The economic condition and outlook of the City of Arnold have improved during the past four years . 
Several large retailers and food stores form a retail nucleus that buffer the sluggish economy due to 
the necessity of the goods sold. Arnold's housing stock, geographic location and variety of services 
have kept real estate marketable. Commercial vacancies remain modest while the potential for further 
retail and industrial development appears favorable within the next five years . 

The citizens of Arnold secure employment with business and industry throughout the St. Louis 
metropolitan area. Employment levels in the metropolitan St. Louis area have been and are expected 
to remain relatively stable due to the variety of business and industry. 

Arnold's tax structure relies mainly on sales taxes and utility taxes. Sales tax receipts are expected to 
maintain steady growth at a pace slightly greater than the rate of inflation. Utility tax receipts are 
likely to increase at a modest rate. Significant reductions are not expected from either source in the 
upcoming five years. The City has demonstrated its ability to compress government expenditures in 
the past to accommodate a tight economy or temporary downturns in revenue. It is anticipated this 
trait will continue. 

Major Goals and Projects: 

The city council and administrative staff regularly develop and update improvement plans designed to 
improve the quality of community life while maintaining the financial stability of the City. The growth 
and direction of the City during the past fiscal year has been greatly affected by these improvement 
plans. 

Goal - Extend Sanitary Sewer Facilities: The City of Arnold sanitary sewer subdistrict program 
has been effective in replacing septic systems with sewer lines. During the year, several sanitary 
sewer subdistricts were in various stages of completion. The elimination of septic systems and the 
related health hazard has been and remains a primary concern for the City. 

Financing for the sewer subdistricts was provided by sewer revenue bonds issued in connection with a 
program called Missouri State Revolving Fund (SRF) 

The SRF program purchased the City's revenue bonds. The interest costs for this bond issue are 
subsidized by the earnings of a reserve fund established with contributions from the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The net rate on 
the bonds for the City is less than 4 percent. These projects eliminate the health hazards accruing 
from the discharge of inadequately treated sewage. Each project reaching completion contributes to a 
safer environment for City residents. 
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Goal - Road Improvements: Increased traffic and outdated design of some existing roads have 
prompted long range planning of road improvements. Current road projects include the relocation of 
portions of Pomme Road and Arnold Tenbrook Road, replacement of two bridges on Old Lemay 
Ferry Road and Starling Road, and a new road into the T enbrook industrial area. The completion of 
these projects will greatly improve the safety of motorists traveling these sections of road . 

Goal - Preserve the Quality of Residential Neighborhoods: People are Arnold's greatest asset, 
and the neighborhoods in which they reside are one of the more important responsibilities of 
government. The provision of quality basic services of police, fire, road maintenance, parks, and solid 
waste collection are critical for their continued desirability. The existing housing inspection program 
prescribes minimum maintenance requirements for structures and premises to assure safety and 
provide for abatement of potential hazards. This program helps assure the preservation of the City's 
neighborhoods . 

Goal - Cooperative Opportunities: The Jefferson County E-911 emergency service results from 
the collective efforts of the City of Arnold Police Department along with fire and ambulance districts 
and other municipal police departments in Jefferson County, and the Jefferson County Sheriffs 
Department, to establish the Jefferson County 911/Central Dispatch District . Citizens now benefit 
from faster emergency service response times . In addition, the City of Arnold continues to provide 
space for the Jefferson County Fox/Windsor Library in the City's municipal complex. 

Goal - Disaster Recovery: During July and August, 1993, portions of the City of Arnold suffered 
severe flooding from the Mississippi and Meramec Rivers. Protective measures initiated by the City 
included supplying materials for construction of sandbag levies, pumping of storm and sanitary 
sewers, as well as security for the evacuated areas The recovery effort began in August, 1993, with 
removal of sandbags and flood debris The federal government declared the area eligible for disaster 
assistance. The City has been awarded federal grants to buyout flood damaged structures. Structures 
acquired through the buyout program are demolished and the land will remain as open space. The 
recovery effort will continue for many months . 

Financial Information: 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure 
designed to ensure the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that 
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed 
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance these objectives are met. The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that (I ) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to 
be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management. 
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Budgeting Controls: The City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary 
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual budget approved by the 
City Council. Activities of the general fund are included in the annual budget. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report , the 
City continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 

General Government Functions: The following schedule presents a summary of general fund 
revenues for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 1995 and the amount and percentage of increases in 
relation to prior year revenues . 

Increase Percent 
Percent (Decrease) of Increase 

Revenues Amount of Total From 1994 (Decrease) 

Taxes $ 5,701 ,074 46.9 % $ (13 ,264) (0.2)% 
Special assessments 237,361 2.0 29 ,043 13.9 
Licenses and permits 267,284 2.2 (21,409) (7 .4) 
Fines and court costs 335,820 2.8 82,858 32.8 
Intergovernmental 4,648 ,881 38.2 2,941 ,625 172.3 
Charges for services 566 ,582 4.7 29,418 5.5 
Interest 146,063 1.2 23 ,558 19.2 
Miscellaneous 252,311 2.0 (70 ,616) (21 .9) 

Total $12,155,376 100.0 % $ 3,001 ,213 32.8 % 

With the City's present tax structure, the largest share of general revenue is provided by the City's one 
cent sales tax and a gross receipts tax on utilities . Collections from the City's one cent sales tax 
increased $83 ,887 to $2,537,595, a 3.4% increase. This increase results from the effects of inflation 
on retail pricing. Collections from the gross receipts tax on utilities decreased $75 ,683, or 5.6%, to 
$1 ,269,851. 

In addition, the City receives capital improvements sales tax as shared by Jefferson County per 
contractual agreement. The monies received from this source are on a reimbursement basis for 
qualifying capital improvement expenditures. Capital improvement sales tax received in fiscal 1995 
totaled $217,570, a decrease of$529,490 or 70.8% over the prior year. 

Special assessment collections can fluctuate significantly from year to year. Collections of special 
assessments for sanitary sewer subdistricts are typically higher during the first year of the ten year 
assessment due to prepayments. 

The license and permit revenue declined as a result of decreased permit volume. 

Fines and court costs have risen as a result of more aggressive judgments in the municipal court . 
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In recent years, intergovernmental revenue has not been significant. In fiscal 1995, the majority of 
intergovernmental revenue consists of $4,562,547 in reimbursements from the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) for the City's disaster recovery expenses and buyout program expenses 
related to the summer 1993 flood disaster. 

The City's charges for services increased moderately in fiscal 1995 and are comprised mainly of fees 
for trash collection. Net losses of $1 ,399 on gross revenue of $461 ,691 were realized during the 
fiscal year. Solid waste collection in the City is provided under a contract with Meramec Hauling, a 
subsidiary of Waste Management, Inc. 

The increase in interest income results from both higher interest rates available on short term 
investments and higher average cash balances. 

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended 
August 31 , 1995 and the percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts. 

Increase Percent 
Percent (Decrease) of Increase 

Expenditures Amount of Total From 1994 (Decrease) 

General government $ 6,005,996 51.5 % $ 3,015,722 100.9 % 
Public safety 2,860,774 24.6 207,820 7.8 
Public works 306,690 2.6 4,861 1.6 
Highways and streets 946,103 8.1 (414 ,182) (30.4) 
Parks and recreation 421 ,626 3.6 (10,105) (2.3) 
Health and sanitation 624,088 5.4 52,311 9.1 
Capital outlay 490,526 4.2 257,536 110.5 

Total $ 11 ,655,803 100.0 % $ 3,113,963 36.5 % 

Expenditures in the General Government category include $4,581 ,354 related to the buyout and 
demolition of flood-damaged structures. The flood related expenditures account for the increase in 
General Government spending. 

Spending for Public Safety increased with the addition of staff and replacement of equipment. 

Street Department expenditures declined due to limited construction activity on road improvement 
projects. 

Health and Sanitation expenditures increased due to increased costs for solid waste collection. 

Capital Outlay expenditures consist of engineering and construction of sanitary sewer subdistricts. 

General Fund Balance: The fund balance of the General Fund increased $499,573 during the year 
to a balance of $4,184, 810 at August 3 1, 199 5. This increase reflects revenues in excess of 
expenditures. 
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Enterprise Operations: The City's enterprise operation is comprised of the sanitary sewer system. 
Providing sanitary sewer services throughout the City has been a major priority since the City's 
inception. Construction of sewer subdistricts for existing housing subdivisions and requiring 
developers to construct sewers for new developments has rapidly added new tap-ons to the system. 

The system continues to have net losses after depreciation, however, cash flow has been positive and 
the regular addition of customers serves to reduce these annual losses. 

Single Audit: As a recipient of Federal financial assistance, the City is responsible for maintaining an 
adequate internal control structure to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related 
to those programs. As part of the City's single audit, tests are performed to determine the adequacy 
of the internal control structure including the portion related to federal financial assistance programs. 
The results of the City's single audit for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 1995 found no instances of 
material weaknesses in the internal control structure. 

Pension Trust Fund Operations: The operations of the City of Arnold Police Pension Plan 
remained stable during fiscal 199 5. The annual actuarial valuation continues to reflect a positive trend 
in the City's and employee's funding of the Police Pension Plan. 

Debt Administration: At August 31 , 1995, the City had two major debt issues outstanding. These 
issues are $1 ,910,000 of certificates of participation (municipal complex), and $3,295 ,500 of sewer 
revenue bonds. The City has no general obligation bonded debt. Under current Missouri statutes, the 
City's legal general obligation debt limit, based on ten percent of the City's total assessed valuation of 
real and personal property is $13 ,987,235 . 

Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in repurchase agreements 
and certificates of deposit. Interest earned on repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit 
totaled $281 ,528 for all funds for the year. The pension trust fund is invested in New England Life 
Insurance Company's General Investment Account. Earnings for the pension fund totaled $104,487 
for the year. 

The City's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive 
yield on its portfolio . Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or 
collateralized. All collateral on deposits was held by a financial institution's trust department in the 
City's name. 

Risk Management: The City of Arnold has been a member of Missouri Intergovernmental Risk 
Management Association (MIRMA) since July 1, 1983 . MIRMA is a statewide governmental 
self-insurance pool providing property, liability, and workers' compensation coverages to its 
members . The financial condition of MIRMA is excellent. The Association has been able to 
significantly increase its self-insurance capacity and services, thereby providing its membership 
superior coverage and cost savings. 

The City, assisted by MIRMA, seeks to provide supervisory and employee training, and identification 
of hazardous conditions or procedures. The Police Department, in particular, utilizes computerized 
legal training prepared by a professional police legal advisor for all officers covering constitutional 
law as it relates to critical tasks performed by police officers. 
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Other Information: 

Independent Audit: Missouri statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants. The certified public accounting firm of Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P . was selected by the 
City Council to perform this year's audit. The auditors' report on the general purpose financial 
statements and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this 
report. 

Award: The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Arnold for 
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended August 3 1, 1994. The Certificate 
of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards 
for preparation of state and local government financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program 
standards. Such comprehensive annual financial report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Arnold has received a 
Certificate of Achievement for the last six consecutive fiscal years ended 1989 to 1994. We believe 
our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and 
we are submitting it to the GFOA. 

Acknowledgments: The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was made possible 
by the cooperation of the entire administrative staff of the various departments of the City. I would 
also like to acknowledge the assistance of our independent public accountants, Coopers & Lybrand 
L.L.P. in formulating this report. 

In closing, without the support of the Mayor and Council preparation of this report would not have 
been possible. 

Sincerely, 

Finance Director 
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Coopers 
&Lybrand 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Arnold, Missouri : 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. 

a professional services fi rm 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Arnold, 
Missouri (the "City") as of August 31 , 1995 and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing table 
of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Arnold's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such general purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the City of Arnold, Missouri as of August 31 , 1995 and the results of its 
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated 
November 21 , 1995 on our consideration of the City's internal control structure and a report dated 
November 21 , 1995 on its compliance with laws and regulations. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole The accompanying supplemental information listed as supplemental 
schedules in the foregoing table of contents, which is also the responsibility of the City's management, 
1s pre~ented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose 
fin~~ial statements of t~e City of Arnold , Missouri . Such information has been subjected to the 
aud1tmg procedures applied m our audit of the general purpose financial statements and in our 
opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 21 , 1995 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. is a member of Coopers & Lybrand International. a limited liability association incorporated in Switzerland. j 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups 
August 31 , 1995 
(With comparative Totals for August 31 , 1994) 

Govern-
mental Proprietary Fiduciary 

Fund Type Fund Type Fund Type 

Trust and 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS General Enterprise Agency 

Assets: . 
Cash and cash equivalents 

$ 1,839,808 $ 816,352 $ 3,149,904 

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) : 
542,730 

Taxes 
Special assessments 

1,710,357 

sewer service fees 
36,583 

658,493 
Grants 53 ,583 6,816 
Miscellaneous 

Due from other funds 
798,142 24,240 

prepaid expenditures 
166,973 

1,000,000 100,000 
Investments 

Restricted assets: . 45,751 
cash and cash equivalents 

2,025,397 

capital improvements sales tax receivable 
784,293 

Investments 
190,000 450,000 

property, plant and equipment: 135,118 
Land 
Machinery and equipment 

359,574 

Automotive equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Treatment plants, building and improvements 

2,168,330 
13,869,571 

sewer lines 
construction-in-process 

428,971 

Less accumulated depreciation 
(3,983,810) 

Other debits: . 
Amount available for debt service 
Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term 

debt 

Total assets and other debits $ 7,790,130 $ 16,412,902 $ 3174144 

Account Groups 

Total 
General General 
Fixed Long-Term 

(Memorandum Only) 

Assets Debt 1995 1994 

$ 5,806,064 $ 4,554,270 

542,730 536,665 
1,710,357 1,469,581 

36 ,583 32,196 
658,493 218,062 

60,399 44,746 

822,382 572,677 
166,973 157,974 

1,100,000 1,100,000 

2,071 ,148 2,093,539 
784,293 744,046 
640,000 640,000 

$ 8,787,070 
1,113,161 

8,922,188 5,072,530 

729,946 
1,472,735 1,291 ,186 

131 ,040 
729,946 723,346 
131,040 134,635 

2,168,330 2,168,330 
13,869,571 13,706,220 

428,971 86,909 
(3,983,810) (3,626 ,871) 

$ 200,000 200,000 200,000 

1710000 1,710,000 1,800,000 

$ 10,761,217 $ 1,910,000 $ 40,048 393 $ 33,720,041 



LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 753,155 $ 44,273 $ 797,428 $ 258,187 
Accrued payroll and compensated absences payable 288,253 17,654 305,907 303,223 
Accrued interest payable 69,637 69,637 72,636 
Due to other funds 24,240 798,142 822,382 572,677 
Deferred revenue 2,470,035 2,470,035 1,875,355 
Sewer service fees collected in advance 74,852 74,852 73,876 
Capital lease obligation $ 1,910,000 1,910,000 2,000,000 
Revenue bonds payable, net of bond discounts 3,218,891 3,218,891 3,395,795 
Deferred compensation benefits payable $ 260,678 260,678 197,609 
Notes payable - SRF 512,706 512 706 415 401 

Total liabilities 3,605,320 4 666 518 260,678 1 910,000 10,442,516 9164 759 

Equity and other credits: 
Investment in general fixed assets $ 10,761 ,217 10,761,217 6,790,692 
Contributed capital 14,389,003 14,389,003 13,883,590 

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) : 
Reserved in accordance with revenue bond agreements 290,000 290,000 519,500 
Unreserved (2,932,619) (2,932,619) {3 ,002,929) 

Fund balances: 

Reserved for prepaid expenditures 166,973 166,973 157,974 
Reserved for encumbrances 110,700 110,700 641,145 
Reserved for sewer subdistrict projects 1,473,672 1,473,672 1,269,162 
Reserved for street projects 927 927 927 
Reserved for escrow deposit - Capital lease 200,000 200,000 200,000 
Reserved for employees retirement system 2,913,466 2,913,466 3,070,816 
Reserved for data processing acquisitions 42,402 42,402 103,837 
Reserved for furniture 30,000 30,000 20,000 
Reserved for community complex 500,000 500,000 
Reserved for stormwater projects 445,225 445,225 
Reserved for neighborhood improvement projects 181 ,537 181 ,537 
Unreserved, undesignated 1,033,374 1,033,374 900 568 

Total equity and other credits 4,184,810 11 ,746 384 2,913,466 10,761,217 29,605,877 24 555,282 

Total liabilities, equity and other credits $ 7i790,130 $ 16,412,902 $ 3174,144 $ 10,761,217 $ 1,910,000 $ 40,048,393 $ 33,720,041 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change 
in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund Type - General Fund 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 
(With Comparative Totals for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1994) 

1995 

Revenues: 
T_axes $ 5,701 ,074 
Special assessments 237,361 
t icenses and permits 267,284 
Fines and court costs 335,820 
Intergovernmenta l 4,648,881 
Charges for services 566,582 
Interest 146,063 
Miscellaneous 252,31 1 

Total revenues 2,155,376 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 6,005,996 
Public safety 2,860,774 
Public works 306,690 
Highway and streets 946,103 
Parks and recreation 421 ,626 
Health and sanitation 624,088 

Ca ita l outlay 490,526 

Total expenditures 11 ,655,803 

Revenues over expenditures 
499,573 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
3,685,237 

Transfer from other funds 

Fund balance, end of year 
$ 4,184,810 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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1994 

$ 5,714,338 
208,318 
288,693 
252,962 

1,707,256 
537,164 
122,505 
322,927 

9,154,163 

2,990,274 
2,652,954 

301 ,829 
1,360,285 

431,731 
571 ,777 

232,990 

8,541 ,840 

612,323 

2,630,857 

442,057 

$ 3,685,237 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Governmental 
Fund Type - General Fund 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 

Budget 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 5,619,050 $ 
Special assessments 300,000 
Licenses and permits 222,300 
Fines and court costs 225,000 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 509,660 
Interest 93,000 
Miscellaneous 175,000 

Actual 

5,701,074 
237,361 
267,284 
335,820 

4,648 ,881 
566 ,582 
146,063 
252,311 

Total revenues 7,144,010 12,155,376 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 1,396,946 6,005,996 
Public safety 2,776,947 2,860,774 
Public works 316,815 306,690 
Highway and streets 1,123,212 946,103 
Parks and recreation 444,452 421 ,626 
Health and sanitation 648,127 624 ,088 

Capital outlay 342,267 490,526 

Total expenditures 7,048,766 11 ,655 ,803 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 95,244 499 ,573 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,685 ,237 3,685 ,237 

Fund balance, end of year $ 3,780,481 $ 4,184,810 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 82,024 
(62,639) 
44 ,984 

110,820 
4,648,881 

56,922 
53 ,063 
77 ,311 

5,011 ,366 

(4,609 ,050) 
(83,827) 
10,125 

177,109 
22,826 
24,039 

(148,259) 

(4 ,607,037) 

404 ,329 

$ 404 ,329 



Exhibit 4 

City of Arnold, Missouri 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Accumulated Deficit/Fund Balance - Proprietary 
Fund Type and Similar Trust Fund 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 
(With Comparative Totals for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1994) 

Proprietary Fiduciary Totals 
Fund Type Fund Type (Memorandum Only) 

Pension 
Enterprise Trust 1995 1994 

Operating revenues: 
Sewer service fees $ 891,019 $ 891,019 $ 856,927 
Sewer connection fees 53,100 53,100 71 ,050 
Employer contributions $ 182,400 182,400 163,910 
Employee contributions 112,544 112,544 96,827 
Dividends and interest 104,487 104,487 94 ,564 
Other 13,283 13,283 15,763 

Total operating revenues 957,402 399,431 1,356,833 1,299,041 

Operating expenses: 
Costs of services 588 ,881 588 ,881 543 ,332 
Administration 109,057 109,057 109,670 
Benefits 165,157 165,157 
Refunds 1,583 
Depreciation and amortization 383,096 383,096 358,377 

Total operating expenses 1,081 ,034 165,157 1,246,191 1,012,962 

Operating income (loss) (123 ,632) 234,274 110,642 286,079 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) : 
Interest revenue 155,768 155,768 138,708 Interest expense {191 ,326} {191 ,326} {291,358} 

Total nonoperating revenues 
(expenses) {35 ,558} {35 ,558} {152,650} 

Net income (loss) (159,190) 234,274 75 ,084 133,429 
(Accumulated deficit) fund balance, 

beginning of year (2 ,483,429) 2,679,192 195,763 504,391 
Transfer to other fund 

{442 ,057} 
(Accumulated deficit) fund balance, 

end of year $ (2 ,642 ,619) $ 2,913,466 $ 270,847 $ 195,763 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type -
Enterprise Fund 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 
(With Comparative Amounts for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1994) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating loss 

Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by 
operating activities - Depreciation and amortization 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease in accounts receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
(Decrease) increase in accrued payroll and 

compensated absences payable 
Increase in deferred revenue 
Increase in amount due to other funds 
Increase in deferred expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets 
Proceeds from Bond Issue 
Proceeds from SRF Loan 
Principal paid on revenue bonds 
Interest paid on revenue bonds 
Capital contributed by developers 
Capital contributed by customers 

Net cash provided (used) for capital and related 
financing activities 

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities -
Transfer to General Fund 

Net cash used for noncapital and related financing 
activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest on investments 
Purchase of investments 
Sale of investments 

Net cash provided for investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

1995 

$ (123,632) 

383,096 

(6 ,405) 
26,439 

(1 ,362) 
976 

234,386 

513,498 

(585 ,993) 

97,304 
(186,167) 
(191 ,326) 
163,350 
342,063 

(360,769) 

155,768 
(2,200,000) 
2,200,000 

155,768 

308,497 

2,533,252 

$ 2,841 ,749 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

6 

Exhibit 5 

1994 

$ (67,639) 

358,377 

(11 ,811 ) 
(23,145) 

7,002 
5,542 

338,352 
(5 ,505) 

601 ,173 

(923,384) 
2,342,494 

252,025 
(1 ,835,000) 

(291 ,358) 
690,393 
232,991 

468 161 

(442,057) 

(442,057) 

138,708 
(1 ,850,000) 
2,050,000 

338,708 

965,985 

1,567,267 

$ 2,533,252 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

The financial statements of the City of Arnold, Missouri (the "City") have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") as applied to government 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB ") is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below. 

A Reporting Entity: The GASB issued Statement No . 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, 
which provides standards for defining the financial reporting entity and identifying entities 
to be included in general purpose financial statements. GASB No. 14 requirements for 
inclusion have been more specifically defined based upon financial accountability. GASB 
No. 14 has had no effect on the City's financial reporting entity. Based upon the application 
of GASB No. 14 criteria, the following is a brief review of each potential component unit 
addressed in defining the City's reporting entity. 

Included within the operating entity: 

City of Arnold, Missouri Sewer System - The City of Arnold, Missouri Sewer System is 
governed by the Council of the City. The rates for user charges and bond issuance 
authorizations also are approved by the City's Council and the legal liability for the Sewer 
System's debt remains with the City. 

City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan - The City's organized police force employees 
participate in the City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan. The plan functions for the 
benefit of these employees and is governed by the City's Council. The City and the plan 
participants are obligated to fund all the plan's costs based upon actuarial valuations. The 
City is authorized to establish benefit levels and to approve the actuarial assumptions used 
in the determination of contribution levels . 

B. Fu~~ Accounting: The City uses funds and account groups to report on its financial 
pos1t1~n and the resu_lts of its _operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal 
c~mphanc_e and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain 
City funct10ns or activities. 

A fund is a separate acco~nting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts . An account 
group, o? the other han?, 1_s_ a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability 
f~r certam assets_ and hab1ht1es that are not recorded in the funds because they do not 
d1rectly affect available net expendable financial resources. 

Funds are_ classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fid · Each 
c t · d. ·d d uc1ary. a egory, m tum, 1s 1v1 e into separate "fund types." 

7 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

B. Fund Accounting, continued: Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of 
a government's general activities. The general fund is used to account for all activities of 
the City not accounted for in some other fund . 

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private 
sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to assure sound 
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities are provided to outside 
parties. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including 
other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the City. The agency fund is used to 
account for assets that the City holds on behalf of others as their agent. 

C. Basis of Accounting: The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is 
determined by its measurement focus . All governmental funds are accounted for using a 
current financial resources measurement focus . With this measurement focus, only current 
assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet . Operating 
statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and 
decreases (i .e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

All proprietary funds and the pension trust fund are accounted for on a flow of economic 
resources measurement focus . With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities 
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity 
(i .e. , net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings 
components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (i .e., revenues) 
and decreases (i .e., expenses) in net total assets . 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and agency 
funds. . Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
~uscept1ble }o accrual (i .e., when they become both measurable and available) . 
Meas~rable_ ~eans the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means 

collectible w1th1~ the current_ period ?r soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of 
th_e ~ur~ent penod. The City considers property taxes as available if they are collected 
~1thm sixty ~ay~ after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
mcurred. Pnnc1pal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities 
when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the general fund for payments to be 
made early m the following year. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

C. Basis of Accounting, continued: Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property 
taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, interest revenue and charges for services. Sales 
taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the City also are recognized as 
revenue. Fines and permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they 
are not measurable until received in cash. 

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and the pension trust 
fund . Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at 
the time liabilities are incurred. 

The City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet . Deferred revenues arise 
when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for 
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received 
by the City before it has a legal claim to them. In subsequent periods, when both revenue 
recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability 
for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is 
recognized. 

D. Budgets: Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the general fund . All annual 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

E. 

F. 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or 
services. Encumbrance accounting - under which purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the 
applicable appropriation - is utilized in the governmental funds . Encumbrances outstanding 
at ~ea~-~?d are reported as res~rvat1ons ?f fund balances and do not constitute expenditures 
or hab1ht1es because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. 

Cash . and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand 
deposits ~s well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the 
date acqmred by the City. 

Investments: State statutes authorize the deposit of funds in banks and tru t · 
h · . s cornparues or 

~ e mvestm~nt of funds m bonds or treasury certificates of the United States oth 
mterest-beanng obligations guara?teed . as to both principal and interest by the 'unit:; 
Stat~s, bonds of the State of M1ssoun or of the City, or time certificates of deposit· 
prov1d~d however, that no such inves~ment _shall be purchased at a price in excess of pa/ 
~unds m the form of cash on ~epos1t or time certificates of deposit are required to be 
msure~ by_ the Federal D_epos1t _Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized b 
authonzed mvestments held m the City's name at third part b nki · · · y 

- y a ng mst1tut10ns. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

F. Investments, continued: Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for 
investments in the deferred compensation agency fund which are reported at market value. 

G. Interfund Receivables/Payables: During the course of operations, numerous transactions 
occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables 
and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance 
sheet. 

H. Prepaid Expenses: Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond 
August 31 , 1995 are recorded as prepaid expenses. 

I. Restricted Assets: Certain funds generated by the sewer system are classified as restricted 
assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by the sewer system revenue bond 
ordinances. The "bond account" is used only for the payment of principal and interest on 
the revenue bonds. The "depreciation and replacement account" is to be expended only for 
repairs or replacements to the sewer system. The "bond reserve account" is to be used only 
to pay bonds at maturity or interest as it accrues when and to the extent other funds are not 
available for this purpose. 

I. 

Certain general fund monies are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because 
their use is limited by covenants of the capital lease agreement. The "reserve account" is to 
be used solely for the purpose of making lease payments on the applicable due dates when 
and to the extent other funds are not available for this purpose. The "lease payment 
account" is used only for the payment of the principal and interest on the lease obligation. 

Certain capital improvement sales tax receivables are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because their use and availability is limited by the sales tax agreement with 
Jefferson County. The funds are to be used for capital improvements to publicly maintained 
roads and become available upon the City's request for reimbursement of expenditures on 
approved projects. 

Fixed Assets: General fixed assets _a~e not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or 
~onstruct them. Instead, capital acqu1s1t1on and construction are reflected as expenditures 
m governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the general fixed assets 
account gro~p. ~l purch_ased fixed assets are valued at cost. Donated fixed assets are 
valued at their estimated fa1r market value on the date received. 

The c_osts of normal main~enance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
maten~lly extend asset !1~es are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remammg useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

J. Fixed Assets, continued: Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets co~sist~ng 
of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and hghtmg 
systems are not capitalized, as these assets are immovable and of value only to the 
government. 

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated.. Depreciation . of 
treatment plants, sewer lines and equipment in the proprietary fund type 1s computed usmg 
the straight-line method. 

K. Property Taxes: Property taxes are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are 
levied . Taxes levied and uncollected are carried as an asset of the general fund . An 
allowance has been established for the estimated uncollectible property taxes. 

The City's property tax calendar is as follows: 

1. Property is assessed by the County on January 1 each year. 

2. The tax levy ordinance is adopted and filed with the county clerk on or before 
September 1. 

3. Property taxes are due to be collected on or before December 3 I. A lien is placed on 
any property which has delinquent taxes . 

L. Compensated Absences: Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be 
liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a 
fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Vested or accumulated vacation 
leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the 
benefits accrued to employees In accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16, 
"Accounting for Compensated Absences," no liability is recorded for nonvesting 
accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits 

M. Long-Term Obligations: Long-term debt related to capital lease obligations is reported in 
the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Revenue bonds which have been issued to 
fund capital proje~ts of the Enterprise Fund are to be repaid from revenues of the Enterprise 
Fund. Such debt 1s recorded m the Enterprise Fund. 

N. Fund Equity: . C~ntributed_ capital recorded in the proprietary fund represents capital 
grants or contnbut1ons received from developers, customers or other funds . Reserves 
represent those po~10ns of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally 
segregated for a sp~c1fic future use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for 
future use of financial resources. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

O. Sewer Connection Fees: Sewer connection fees are accounted for as revenues only to the 
extent the fees equal the cost of physical connection to the system. Amounts that 
substantially exceed the cost to connect are accounted for as additions to contributed 
capital. 

P. Bond Discounts: Bond discounts for the proprietary fund type are deferred and amortized 
over the term of the bonds using the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the 
effective interest method. Bond discounts are presented as a reduction of the face amount 
of bonds payable. 

Q. Interfund Transactions: Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, 
expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for 
expenditures/ expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, 
are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of 
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are 
reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are 
reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating 
transfers. 

R Comparative Data: Comparative data for the prior year have been presented in the 
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the 
City's financial position and operations However, complete comparative data (i.e., 
presentation of prior year totals by fund type) have not been presented in each of the 
statements since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to 
read . Certain comparative data have been reclassified to present such amounts in a manner 
consistent with the current year's financial statements. 

S Memorandum Only - Total Columns: Total columns on the general purpose financial 
sta~~ments are _captioned "memorandum only" to indicate that they are presented only to 
facilitate ~nanc1al analysis Data in these columns do not present financial position, results 
of operat1~ns or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Such data 1s not comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made 
in the aggregation of this data 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

2. Legal Compliance - Budgets: 

Annually, on or before July 8, all departments submit requests for appropriation to the City's 
budget committee so that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function 
and activity, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested 
appropriations for the next fiscal year. During August, the budget is presented to the City 
Council for review. Prior to September 1, the budget is enacted by City Council through 
passage of an ordinance. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations within 
the organizational unit . (An organizational unit is defined as a department of the City) . 
Budgeted amounts in the accompanying financial statements include transfers and revisions to 
the original budget ordinance. All amendments to the budget must be approved by the City 
Council. 

3. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments: 

At August 31 , 1995, cash, cash equivalents and investments consisted of the following : 

Pension 
Trust and 

Total 
Agency 

Unrestricted Restricted Funds 

Petty cash $ 1,083 $ 1,083 
(Overdrafts) cash in banks (14,594) (58 ,344) $ 43,750 
Certificates of deposit 190,000 190,000 Mutual funds 30,421 20,421 10,000 Repurchase agreements 
Guaranteed investment 

4,329,000 3,793 ,000 536,000 

contracts 1,931 ,398 1,931 ,398 Investment in pension plan 
pooled investments 2,892,038 

Investment in deferred compen- $ 2,892,038 
sation mutual fund 257,866 

257,866 
Total cash , cash equiva-

lents and investments $ 9,617,212 $ 3,756,160 $ 2,711 ,148 $ 3,149,904 

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the Ci ' d . 
balance was $302 899 wh· h • l ty s eposits was $205,826 and the bank 

, ic was ent1re y covered by federal depository insurance. 

13 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

3. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued: 

Investments: The City's investments are categorized as either (1) insured or registered or for 
which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name, (2) uninsured and 
unregistered for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in 
the City's name or (3) uninsured and unregistered for which the securities are held by the 
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City's name. 

Categories 
Carrying Market 

1 2 3 Amount Value 

Repurchase agreements $ 4,329,000 None $ 4,329,000 $ 4,329,000 
Guaranteed investment contracts 1,931 ,398 1,931 ,398 
Mutual funds 30,421 30,421 
Investment in pension plan pooled 

investments 2,892,038 2,892,038 
Investment in deferred compensation 

mutual fund 257,866 257,866 

Total investments $ 9,440,723 $ 9,440,723 

Statutes reqmre collateral pledged for deposits to be held m the City's name by the trust 
department. 

4. Receivables: 

Receivables at August 3 I, 1995 consist of the following : 

General Enterprise Total 
Receivables : 

Taxes 
$ 554,924 Special assessments $ 554,924 

Sewer seNice fees 1,710,357 1,710,357 
Miscellaneous $ 64,446 64,446 

724,272 6,816 731 ,088 
Gross receivables 

2,989,553 71,262 3,060,815 
Less allowance for uncollectibles 

(24 ,390) (27,863) (52,253) 
Net total receivables $ 2,965,163 $ 43 ,399 $ 3,008,562 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

4. Receivables, continued: 

Included in taxes receivable are delinquent real estate taxes receivable which represent the past 
twenty-two years of uncollected tax levies. The allowance for estimated uncollectible real estate 
taxes is 100% of the total delinquent real estate taxes receivable at August 31 , 1995. 

5. Fixed Assets: 

The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets account group during the 
fiscal year: 

September 1, Retire- August 31, 
1994 Additions ments 1995 

Land $ 4,937,412 $ 3,849,658 $ 8,787,070 
Machinery and equipment 995,299 119,632 $ 1,770 1,113,161 
Automotive equipment 723,346 123,857 117,257 729,946 
Furniture and fixtures 134,635 3,595 131 ,040 

$ 6,790,692 $ 4,093,147 $ 122,622 $10,761 ,217 

The following is a summary of proprietary fund-type fixed assets at August 31, 1995: 

Land 
Machinery and equipment 
Treatment plants, buildings and improvements 
Sewer lines 
Construction-in-process 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Net fixed assets 

15 

Enterprise 
Funds 

$ 135,118 
359,574 

2,168,330 
13,869,571 

428,971 
(3,983,810) 

$12,977,754 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

5. Fixed Assets, continued: 

In the proprietary fund, the following estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation: 

Machinery and equipment 
Treatment plants, buildings and improvements 
Sewer lines 

6. Risk Management: 

8 years 
10 - 30 years 

50 years 

The City is a member of the Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Management Association 
("MIRMA"), a state-wide governmental self-insurance pool which provides property, liability 
and workers' compensation coverages to its participating members in a single comprehensive 
multiline package. The various lines of coverage are not available individually and the 
membership is limited to municipalities and municipally owned utilities. The City's policy covers 
all real and personal property owned by the City except sewer lines. The policy is for 
replacement cost and expires June 30, 1996. 

MIRMA is funded by annual member assessments calculated at a rate per $100 of annual payroll 
which applies to all lines of coverage on a composite basis . These funds are used to pay losses 
within specific risk retention limits shared equally by all members; purchase excess insurance 
which provides a transfer of catastrophic risk to private insurance carriers; purchase services 
such as claims administration, loss prevention and data processing; and pay administrative 
expenses. Should actual insurance losses exceed MIRMA's estimates, the City could be required 
to contribute additional funds . Management believes the risk of additional loss is minimal and 
any additional contributions that may be required would not materially impact the overall 
operations of the City The City paid an assessment totaling $189,569 for MIRMA's fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1995 and has paid an assessment totaling $200,368 for the year ending June 30 
1996. ' 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

7. Capital Lease: 

The City entered into a lease-purchase agreement for financing the construction of a municipal 
building complex. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes (title 
transfers at the end of the lease term) and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of 
the future minimum lease payments as of the date of its inception. The complex has been 
recorded in the General Fixed Asset Account Group at a cost of $2,590,998 . The lessor 
financed the lease through Certificates of Participation totaling $2,420,000. The City's payment 
under this lease will be an amount sufficient to pay off the Certificates of Participation. A 
reserve fund of $200,000 has been recorded in the General Fund under terms of the agreement 
and will be used to make the final payment in April 2006. The interest rate on the lease is 
8.84%. 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease, and the 
present value of the net minimum lease payments as of August 31, 1995 : 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
August 31, 

1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 - 2006 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less amount representing interest 

Present value of future minimum lease 
payments 

$ 

$ 

267,126 
273 ,376 
268,312 
262 ,812 
261 ,876 

1,788 ,814 

3,122,316 

(1 ,212 ,316) 

1,910,000 

~~rgi:!;~:i ioenagr etnermdeddAbutgust 3 l , I 99 5, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in 
- e account group : 

Capital leases 

Balance, 
September 1 Additions 

$ 2,000,000 $ 
==== 
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$ 

Reductions 
Balance, 

August 31 

90,000 $ 1,910,000 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

8. Long-Term Debt: 

The City issues revenue bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired or 
constructed assets to pay debt service. In 1991 and 1992, the voters of the City approved the 
issuance of $1 ,500,000 and $2,000,000, respectively, of sewer system revenue bonds to finance 
the costs of constructing extensions to the sewer system. Bonds totaling $ I ,270, 000 and 
$1 , 135,000 were issued in 1 992 and 1993, respectively. The 1992 and 1993 revenue bonds 
were issued in connection with a grant/loan program called Missouri State Revolving Fund. The 
interest costs for these bond issues are subsidized by the earnings of reserve funds established 
with no-interest loans from the Missouri Department of Natural Resources and the U.S . 
Environmental Protection Agency. Therefore, the effective rate of the bonds is less than the 
stated rate. The 1992 bonds are in denominations of $5,000 each and bear interest at rates of 
4.25% to 6.55%. The 1993 bonds are in denominations of $1 ,000 each, or multiples thereof, 
and bear interest at rates of 3.4% to 5.4%. 

In 1994, the City issued $1 ,240,000 of sewer system refunding revenue bonds. The bonds were 
issued for the purpose of refunding $1 ,355,000 aggregate principal amount of the City's 
outstanding sewer revenue bonds dated March 1, 1986, which were issued for the purpose of 
extending and improving the system. The City transferred the proceeds of the refunding bonds 
in the amount of $1 ,240,000, together with an additional amount of$ I 80,006 of available funds 
of the City, for deposit in an escrow fund . Such monies deposited with the escrow agent were 
used to purchase direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in such amounts 
and at such times as were sufficient, together with the interest to accrue thereon, to pay the 
principal of and interest on the outstanding 1986 bonds on September I, 1994, and to redeem 
and pay the principal of and accrued interest on the 1986 bonds remaining outstanding on 
September 1, 1994 at a redemption price equal to 103 % of the principal amount thereof The 
reduction in cash flow requirements to service the refunding issue was approximately $2 I 0,000. 

The rev~nue bonds dated June 1, 1992 maturing after January I, 2002 may be called for 
redempt1~n and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June I and December 1 
co_m~encmg June 1, 2002, at redemption prices set forth below ( expressed as percentages of 
pnnc1pa1 amount) plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption : 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

8. Long-Term Debt, continued: 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2002 and December 1 , 2002 
June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2004 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Prices 

102% 
101% 
100% 

The revenue bonds dated August 1, 1993 maturing after January 1, 2003 may be called for 
redemption and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 
commencing June 1, 2003, at redemption prices set forth below (e~pressed as percentages of 
principal amount) plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redempt10n: 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2004 and December 1, 2004 
June 1, 2005 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Prices 

102% 
101% 
100% 

The revenue bonds dated March l , 1994 maturing after September 1, 2001 may be called for 
redemption and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on any interest payment date, 
commencing September 1, 2000, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount 
plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. 

The bond ordinances require that the City establish rates and charges for its sewer services, such 
that the revenues derived from the sewage system are sufficient to provide for the payment of 
principal and interest on the revenue bonds and for the operation and maintenance of the sewage 
system. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

8. Long-Term Debt, continued: 

The ordinances also require the City to deposit specified amounts in the following accounts: 

"Bond Account" - A monthly deposit is to be made in this account for the payment of 
principal and interest. At August 31 , 1995, no balance was required. 

"Depreciation and Replacement Account" - A restricted asset and related reserve for 
$166,000 has accumulated as of August 31 , 1995. 

Bond Reserve Account" - A restricted asset and related reserve for $124,000 has 
accumulated as of August 31 , 1995 . 

Any surplus remaining after making the required deposits and necessary disbursements described 
above shall be allocated to the following accounts by order of the City Council: 

"Bond Redemption Account" - Deposits of not less than 25% of the surplus are to be made 
to this account. Funds are to be used for the redemption of sewage system revenue bonds 
prior to their stated maturities. 

"Extension and Improvement Account" - The remainder of the surplus is to be deposited in 
this account. Sums are to be used for the construction of extensions to and improvements 
in the sewage system. 

As of August 31 , 1995, there was no surplus in the Sewer System Fund to allocate to the two 
accounts above. 

The prin~ipal m~turity of the bonds, excluding amounts maturing after August 31 , I 995, which 
were reIT11tted pnor to the current fiscal year-end, are as follows : 

1994 1993 1992 Total 

1996 $ 100,000 $ 28,500 $ 10,000 $ 1997 100,000 39,000 
138,500 

1998 40 ,000 179,000 
1999 

125,000 40,000 40,000 205,000 
2000 

100,000 42,000 45 ,000 187,000 
2001 - 2014 

70,000 44,000 45 ,000 159,000 
540,000 897,000 990,000 2,427,000 

Less unamortized discounts 
1,035,000 1,090,500 1,170,000 3,295,500 

(19 ,880) (27,533) (29,196} (76,609} 
Net revenue bonds outstanding $ 1,015,120 $ 1,062,967 $ 1,140,804 $ 3,218,891 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

8. Long-Term Debt, continued: 

In conjunction with the bonds dated June 1, 1992 a reserve account has been established with a 
no-interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and matching funds from the State of 
Missouri . When fully funded, this loan (reserve account) will be funded in an amount equal to 
fifty percent ( 50%) of the outstanding principal amount of such bonds. The reserve account is 
held in trust. As the principal amount of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve 
account will be reduced such that the reserve account will equal fifty percent ( 50%) of the 
remaining principal balance of such bonds. 

In conjunction with the bonds dated August 1, 1993 a reserve account has been established with 
a no interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and matching funds from the State of 
Missouri . When fully funded, this loan (reserve account) will be funded in an amount equal to 
seventy percent (70%) of the outstanding principal amount of such bonds. the reserve account 
is held in trust. As the principal amount of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve 
account will be reduced such that the reserve account will equal seventy percent (70%) of the 
remaining principal balance of such bonds. 

The number of customers served by the sewer system at August 31 , 1994 and August 31 , 1995 
was 6,638 and 6,650, respectively. 

9. Deficit Fund Balance: 

At August 31 , 1995, the enterprise fund had an unreserved accumulated deficit of$2,932,619 . 
This deficit is offset by contributed capital. 

10. lnterfund Assets/Liabilities: 

Due from/to other funds at August 31 , 1995, are as follows : 

Receivable Fund 

General 
Agency 
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Payable 
Fund 

Sewer 
General 

Amount 

$ 798,142 
24,240 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

11. Segment Information - Enterprise Fund: 

The Government maintains one enterprise fund which is intended to be self-supporting through 
sewer system user fees charged for services to the public. Financial segment information as of 
and for the year ended August 31 , 1995 is presented below: 

Operating revenues 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Operating loss 
Net loss 
Current capital contributions 
Property, plant and equipment additions 
Net working capital 
Total assets 
Bonds payable, net of bond discount 
Total equity 

12. Contributed Capital: 

$ 957,402 
383,096 

(123 ,632) 
(159 ,190) 
505,413 
243,930 
797,824 

16,412,902 
3,218,891 

11 ,746,384 

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995, the enterprise fund 's contributed capital increased 
by the following amounts: 

Source 

Customers - Sewer lines 
Developers - Sewer lines 

Total 

Contributed capital , August 31 , 1994 

Contributed capital , August 31 , 1995 
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$ 342,063 
163,350 

505,413 

13,883,590 

$ 14,389,003 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

13. Contingent Liabilities: 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds . The amount, if any, of 
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, 
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial . 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's management and legal counsel, the resolution 
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

14. Deferred Compensation Plan: 

The City offers its employees two deferred compensation plans created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plans, available to all City employees, permit them to 
defer a portion of their salary until future years . Participation in the plans is optional. The 
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency. The City reserves the right to amend or cancel the plans. The City 
has no responsibility for loss due to the investment or failure of investment of funds and assets in 
the plans, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent 
investor. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with 
those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or 
made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the City 
subject only to the claims of the City's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plans are 
equal to those of general creditors of the City in an amount equal to the fair market value of the 
deferred account for each participant. 

The City believes that it is unlikely that it will use these assets to satisfy the claims of general 
creditors in the future . 

Investments are managed by the plans' trustees under one of eleven investment options or a 
combination thereof. The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

15. Employee Retirement Systems: 

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (City of Arnold, Missouri 
Police Pension Plan) which covers all members of the organized police force and participates in 
the state-wide Missouri Local Government Retirement System, a multiple-employer, 
cost-sharing public employee pension plan which covers all of the City's full-time employees 
except for members of the police force. 

City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan ("Plan"): 

Plan Description and Provisions - All of the City's full-time police employees participate in 
the Plan, a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan. The payroll for employees 
covered by the Plan for the year ended August 31, 1995, was $1,324,038 and the City's 
total payroll was $3 ,253 ,562. Membership in the Plan is comprised of the following : 

Group 

Active employees: 
Vested 
Nonvested 

September 1, 
1994 

29 
9 

Employees attaining the age of 5 5 who have completed five or more years of service are 
entitled to benefits based upon average earnings and years of service. The plan also 
provides early retirement, death and disability benefits. 

Each member is required to contribute 8- l /2% of gross salary. The City is required to 
contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the Plan. 

Funding Status and Progress - The amount shown below as the "pension benefit obligation" 
is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for 
the effects of projected salary increases, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of 
employee service to date . This measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected 
benefits and is intended to (i) help users assess the Plan's funding status on a going concern 
basis, (ii) assess progress being made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when 
due and (iii) allow for comparisons among public employee retirement plans. The measure 
is independent of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the 
Plan. The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the 
Plan as of September 1, 1994. Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the 
pension benefit obligation include : (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

15. Employee Retirement Systems, continued: 

City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan ("Plan"): 

Funding Status and Progress, continued - future assets of 7 1/2% per year compounded 
annually and (b) projected salary increases of 5% per year compounded annually, 
attributable to inflation. 

Contributions Required and Contributions Made - Whereas the annual valuations provide 
for actuarial assumptions upon which funding is based, actual contributions are based upon 
appropriations in the annual budget of the City in accordance with the ordinance adopting 
the Plan. Therefore, the expected actuarially determined status of the Plan varies from the 
actual results. 

For 1995, contributions totaling $283 ,339 were required to be made in accordance with 
actuarially determined contribution requirements determined through an actuarial valuation 
performed at September 1, 1994 using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. The 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amortized using a standard amortization at an 
assumed rate of 7% over 30 years. 

These contributions consisted of (a) $207,005 normal cost (15 .6% of current covered 
payroll) and (b) $76,334 amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (5 .8% of 
current covered payroll). 

The City's actual contribution to the Plan for 199 5 was $182,400 . Employee contributions 
amounted to $112,544. 

The employer and employee contributions represented 13 .8% and 8.5%, respectively, of 
current year covered payroll . 

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements were the same 
as those used to compute the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation. 

Trend Information - Trend information for the three years ended August 31, 1992, 1993 
and 1994, respectively, is as follows : available assets were sufficient to fund 75%, 76% and 
79% of the pension benefit obligation. The unfunded pension benefit obligation represented 
6 7%, 66% and 60% of the annual payroll for employees covered by the Plan for 1992, 1993 
and 1994, respectively. Presenting the unfunded pension benefit obligation as a percentage 
of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation for analysis 
purposes. In addition, for the three years ended August 31, 1992, 1993 and 1994, the City's 
contributions to the Plan in accordance with actuarially determined contributions were 9%, 
9%, and 14%, respectively, of annual covered payroll . Ten-year trend information is 
presented in the supplemental information included in this report. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

15. Employee Retirement Systems, continued: 

Missouri Local Government Retirement Syst1~m ("LAGERS"): 

Plan Description and Provisions - All of the government's full-time employees except police 
officers participate in LAGERS, an agent multiple-employer public employee pension plan 
that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local government entities 
in Missouri . LAGERS was created and is governed by State statute. The payroll for 
employees covered by LAGERS for the year ended August 31, 1995 was $1 ,672,437; the 
City's total payroll was $3 ,253 ,562. 

Group 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently 
receiving benefits 

Vested terminated employees 

Active employees: 
Vested 
Nonvested 

February 28, 
1995 

13 
20 

44 
15 

Employees who retire on or after age 60 with five or more years of service are entitled to an 
allowance for life based upon the benefit program then in effect. The allowance is equal to 
a benefit factor multiplied by the final average salary multiplied by the number of years of 
service. LAGERS also provides early retirement, death and disability benefits. 

Description of Funding Policy - The City selected a noncontributory option for its 
membership thereby requiring the City to contribute the full amount required by statute 
necessary to finance the coverage of its employees. The contribution level is actuarially 
determined annually and is ex ressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution 
requirement for the year ended August 31, 1995 was $177,439 (I 1% of covered payroll) . 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

15. Employee Retirement Systems, continued: 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System ("LAGERS"), continued: 

Description of Funding Policy, continued - The amount reported below as the "pension 
benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension 
benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated to be payable in 
the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial present 
value of credited projected benefits and is intended to assist users in their assessment of the 
Plan's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among public employee 
retirement plans. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used to 
determine contributions to the plan. 

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the plan 
performed as of February 28, 199 5. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation 
include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7% per year 
compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4% per year compounded annually, 
attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.0% to 3.4% 
per year, depending on age, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) pre- and post-retirement 
mortality based on the 1984 Group Annuity Mortality Table set back no years for men and 
six years for women. 

The obligation for the retirees and beneficiaries has been transferred to LAGERS as a 
whole. 

Actuarially Determined Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made - The City is 
obligated by State statute to make all required contributions to the plan. The required 
contributions are actuarially determined using the individual entry-age actuarial cost 
method. The prior service costs are amortized over an initial amortization period of 40 
years and the amounts of additional unfunded obligations created due to increases in plan 
benefits over 30 years . Any refunds are amortized over 15 years. 

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarially determined employer 
contribution requirements are the same as those used to compute the pension benefit 
obligation. 

The City's contribution for 1995 of $177,439 was made in accordance with actuarially 
determined requirements computed through an actuarial valuation performed as of 
February 28, 1995 . This contribution consisted of (a) $111 ,538 normal cost (6 .7% of 
current covered payroll) and (b) $65 ,901 amortization of prior service costs (3 . 9% of 
current covered payroll). 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

15. Employee Retirement Systems, continued: 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System ("LAGERS"), continued: 

Trend Information - For the three years ended February 28, 1993, 1994 and 1995, 
respectively, available assets were sufficient to fund 71%, 55% and 58% of the pension 
benefit obligation. The unfunded pension benefit obligation represented 25%, 54% and 
56% of the annual payroll for 1993 , 1994 and 1995, respectively. Showing the unfunded 
pension benefit obligation as a percentage of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts 
for the effects of inflation for analysis purposes. In addition, for the three years ended 
February 28, 1993, 1994 and 1995, the City's contributions, all made in accordance with 
actuarially determined requirements, was 8%, 8% and 11 % respectively of annual covered 
payroll. 

Multi-year historical trend information presenting the progress in accumulating sufficient 
assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the accompanying supplemental schedules. 

Pension Benefit Obligation - The combined unfunded pension benefit obligation was 
determined as follows : 

Plan LAGERS 
September 1, February 28, Combined 

1994 1995 Total 

Pension Benefit Obligation : 
Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits $ 178,476 $ 178,476 

Current employees : 
Accumulated employee contributions including allocated 

investment income $ 955,468 955,468 
Employer financed - Vested 1,149,006 1,852,480 3,001 ,486 
Employer financed - Nonvested 1,288,979 47,013 1,335,992 

Total pension benefit obligation 3,393,453 2,077,969 5,471,422 

Total assets available for benefits , at cost (market value of 
"Plan" and "LAGERS" assets at August 31 , 1995, 
$2,913,466 and $1 ,318,550, respectively) 2,679,128 1,196 830 3,875,958 

Unfunded pension benefit obligation $ 714,325 $ 881 ,139 $ 1,595,464 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

16. lnterfund Administration Fee: 

During the year, the Sewer System Fund paid $108,000 to the General Fund for administrative 
costs incurred by the General Fund relating to the operation of the Sewer System Fund. This fee 
is included in miscellaneous revenue in the General Fund. 

17. New Pronouncements: 

In November 1994, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") issued Statement 
No. 25 , Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for 
Defined Contribution Plans ("GASB 25") and Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by 
State and Local Governmental Employers ("GASB 27"). 

GASB 25 establishes financial reporting standards for defined benefit pension plans whether the 
information is included in a separately issued financial report of the plan or in the financial report 
of the plan sponsor or participating employer (pension trust fund) . GASB 25 is effective for the 
City's fiscal year ending August 3 1, 1997. 

GASB 27 establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of pension 
expenditures/expense and related liabilities, assets, note disclosures and required supplementary 
information in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. GASB 27 is 
effective for the City's fiscal year ending August 31 , 1998. 
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General Fund 

The general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with the City which are not 
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund . 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Governmental Fund Type - General Fund 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

y 
Sales 

c utilities gross receipts 
r fuel 

Other 

Total taxes 

Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and court costs 
Intergovernmental 
Charge for services 
Interest 

Other revenue : 
Sewer administration 
Insurance claims 
Animal shelter 
Other 

Total other revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General government: 

General and administrative 
Mayor and council 
Municipal court 
Administrator 
Treasurer 
Finance 
Collector of revenue 
~ttorney 
Elections 
Planning commission 
Flood emergency 

Total general government 

$ 

Continued 

30 

Budget 

489 ,000 
3,274,050 
1,322,000 

446,000 
88,000 

5,619,050 

300,000 
222,300 
225,000 

509,660 
93,000 

108,000 
1,000 
4,000 

62,000 

175,000 

7,144,010 

768 ,781 
104,943 

58 ,563 
86,264 
18,293 

121 ,106 
107,851 
69,468 

4,500 
57,177 

1,396,946 

$ 

Actual 

488,468 
3,397,41 9 
1,269';"851 

~43,1.43 
!01 ,593 

5,701 ,074 

237,361 
267,284 
335,820 

4,648 ,881 
566,582 
146,063 

108,000 
4,235 
3,715 

136,361 

252,311 

12,155,376 

843,103 
65,559 
59,246 

112,823 
18,658 

111,435 
101 ,731 
' 

56 ,363 
4,581 ,354 

6,005,996 

$ 

Exhibit A-1 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(532) 
123,369 
(52,149) 
(2,257) 
13,593 

82,024 

(62,639) 
44,984 

110,820 
4,648 ,881 

56,922 
53,063 

3,235 
(285) 

74,361 

77,311 

5,011 ,366 

(74,322) 
39,384 

(683) 
(26,559) 

(365) 
9,671 
6,120 

15,945 
2,299 

814 
(4,581 ,354) 

{4 ,609,050) 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Governmental Fund Type - General Fund, Continued 

Budget 

Expenditures, continued : 
Public safety: 

Police $ 2,248,821 $ 
Police board 3,768 
Dispatching 273,786 
Building commission 250,572 

Total public safety 2,776,947 

Public works 316,815 

Highway and streets 1,123,212 

Parks and recreation 444,452 

Health and sanitation : 
Health department 85,716 
Rabies control 84,946 
Vector control 15,875 
Solid waste 461 ,590 

Total health and sanitation 648,127 

Capital outlay 342,267 

Total expenditures 7,048,766 

Revenue (under) over expenditures 95,244 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,685,237 

Transfer from other funds 

Fund balance, end of year $ 3,780,481 $ 

31 

Actual 

2,353,252, 
1,081 

~65,:t..76 
241 ,265 

2,860,774 

306,690 

946,103 

421,626 

95,752 
61,652 

3,594 
463 ,090 

624,088 

490 ,526 

11 ,655 ,803 

499 ,573 

3,685,237 

4,184,810 

Exhibit A-1 , 
continued 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (104,431) 
2,687 
8,610 
9,307 

(83,827) 

10,125 

177,109 

22,826 

(10,036) 
23,294 
12,281 
(1 ,500) 

24,039 

(148 ,259) 

(4,607 ,037) 

404 ,329 

$ 404 ,329 



Exhibit A-2 

City of Arnold, Missouri 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System (LAGERS) 

Analysis of Funding Progress 
last ten fiscal years 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Unfunded 
Pension Net Assets Assets PBO asa 
Benefit Available asa Percentage 

Valuation Obligation for Percentage Unfunded Covered of Covered 
Date (PBO) Benefits ofPBO PBO Payroll Payroll 

2/28/86 $ 411 ,908 $ 193,812 47% $ 218,096 $ 1,058,890 21% 

2/28/87 636,744 300,634 47% 336,110 1,178,121 29% 
2/29/88 841 ,746 455,126 54% 386,620 1,313,462 29% 
2/28/89 894,738 511 ,503 57% 383,235 1,357,505 28% 
2/28/90 999,822 600,188 60% 399,634 1,429,622 28% 
2/28/91 1,106,183 704,945 64% 401 ,238 1,348,579 30% 
2/29/92 1,185,051 795,309 67% 389,742 1,437,807 27% 
2/28/93 1,363,806 973,996 71% 389,810 1,540,493 25% 
2/28/94 2,023,322 1,119,698 55% 903,624 1,669,927 54% 
2/28/95 2,077,969 1,196,830 58% 881 ,139 1,569,811 56% 

Analysis of the dollar amounts of net assets available for benefits, pension benefit obligation and unfunded pension benefit obligation in 
isolation can be misleading. Expressing the net assets available for benefits as a percentage of the pension benefit obligation provides one 
indication of the plan's funding status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over time indicates whether the plan is becoming 
financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the plan. Expressing the unfunded pension benefrt 
obligation as a percentage of annual covered payroll aids analysis of the plan's progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefrts 
when due. Generally, the smaller this percentage, the stronger the plan. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System (LAGERS) 

Expenses by Type 
last ten fiscal years 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Fiscal 
Year Benefits 

1986 $ 4,954 
1987 8,284 
1988 8,748 
1989 10,539 
1990 15,614 
1991 22,248 
1992 22,801 
1993 27,182 
1994 36,228 
1995 44 ,519 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System (LAGERS) 

Revenues by Source 
last ten fiscal years 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Fiscal Employer Investment Total 
Year Contributions Income Revenue 

1986 $ 86,839 $ 24,750 $ 111 ,589 
1987 104,887 40,058 144,945 
1988 134,440 28,695 163,135 
1989 115,137 43,762 158,899 
1990 115,063 62,250 177,313 
1991 114,232 46,100 160,332 
1992 120,742 61 ,092 181 ,834 
1993 130,128 108,348 238,476 
1994 142,321 90,449 232,770 
1995 177,439 79,808 257,247 
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Employer 
Contributions 

as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 

8% 
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Trust and Agency Funds 

Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity. Agency funds are 
used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governments and/or other funds . 

* * * * * 

Police Pension Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for pension 
benefit payments to qualified public safety employees. 

Deferred Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for assets held for employees in 
accordance with the provisions oflnternal Revenue Code Section 457 . 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Trust and Agency Funds 

Combined Balance Sheet 
as of August 31, 1995 
(With Comparative Totals as of August 31, 1994) 

Police 
Pension 

Trust 

Assets: 
Investments $ 2,892,038 
Due from other funds 21 ,428 

Total assets $ 2,913,466 

Liabil it ies - Deferred compensation 
benefits payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for employees retirement 

system $ 3,393,453 
Unreserved (479,987) 

Total fund balances 2,913,466 

Total liabilities and fund 
balances $ 2,913,466 
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Exhibit B-1 

Deferred 
Compen- Totals 

sation 
Agency 1995 1994 

257,866 $ 3,149,904 $ 2,867,880 
2,812 24,240 8,921 

260,678 $ 3,174,144 $ 2,876,801 

260,678 $ 260,678 $ 197,609 

260,678 260,678 197,609 

3,393,453 3,070,816 
(479,987) (391 ,624) 

2,913,466 2,679,192 

260,678 $ 3,174,144 $ 2,876,801 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Police Pension Trust Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 

Operating revenues: 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Dividends and interest 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expense - Benefits 

Total operating expenses 

Net income 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 
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$ 182,400 
112,544 
104,487 

399,431 

165,157 

165,157 

234,274 

2,679,192 

$ 2,913,466 



Exhibit 8-3 

City of Arnold, Missouri 

Police Pension Trust Fund 

Analysis of Funding Progress 
last ten fiscal years 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Unfunded 
Pension Net Assets Assets PBO asa 
Benefit Available asa Percentage 

Valuation Obligation for Percentage Unfunded Covered of Covered 
Date (PBO) Benefits ofPBO PBO Payroll Payroll 

8/31/85* $ 1,075,712 $ 693,578 64% $ 382,134 $ 754,975 51% 

8/31/86 1,235,616 872,151 71% 363,465 TT8,768 47% 
8/31/87 1,353,TT3 1,013,7n 75% 339,996 847,035 40% 
8/31/88 1,587,891 1,284,412 81% 303,479 894,388 34% 
8/31/89 1,628,107 1,482,378 91% 145,729 950,115 15% 
8/31/90 1,806,590 1,553,227 86% 253,363 999,514 25% 
8/31 /91 2,059,293 1,826,987 89% 232,306 1,016,996 23% 
8/31/92** 2,853,772 2,129,903 75% 723,869 1,076,019 67% 
8/31/93 3,070,816 2,321,498 76% 749,318 1,129,963 66% 
8/31/94 3,393,453 2,679,128 79% 714,325 1,185,178 60% 

Normal retirement age reduced from 60 to 55. 

Benefit formula amended to increase the maximum credited service from 20 years to 30 years. 

Analysis of the dollar amounts of net assets available for benefits, pension benefit obligation and unfunded pension benefit obligation in 
isolation can be misleading. Expressing the net assets available for benefits as a percentage of the pension benefrt obligation provides one 
indication of the plan's funding status on a going-concern basis . Analysis of this percentage over time indicates whether the plan is becoming 
financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the plan. Expressing the unfunded pension benefrt 
obligation as a percentage of annual covered payroll aids analysis of the plan's progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due. Generally, the smaller this percentage, the stronger the plan . 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Police Pension Trust Fund 

Expenses by Type 
last ten fiscal years 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Fiscal Year 

1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

$ 

Expenses by Type 

Refunds Benefits 

2,765 $ 66,898 $ 
113,465 

16,635 
18,181 . 87,603 
15,150 186,336 
23 ,833 

8,695 
117,297 

1,583 
165,1 57 
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Adminis- Total 
tration Expenses 

3,523 $ 73 ,186 
5,968 119,433 

16,635 
7,819 113,603 
6,277 207 ,763 

23 ,833 
8,695 

117,297 
1,583 

165,157 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Police Pension Trust Fund 

Revenues by Source 
last ten fiscal years 

Fiscal Year 

1986 $ 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

Employer 
Contri-
butions 

100,000 
105,000 
115,000 
115,000 
95,000 
88 ,250 
94,660 

100,697 
163,910 
182,400 

Employee 
Contri-
butions 

$ 70,390 $ 
71 ,998 
76,023 
80,773 
84,929 
86,566 
91 ,771 
96,441 
96,827 

112,544 
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Employer 
Contri-
butions 

Dividend as a 
and Percentage 

Interest Total of Covered 
Income Revenue Payroll 

81 ,369 $ 251 ,759 13% 
84,061 261 ,059 12% 
95,647 286,670 13% 

106,469 302,242 12% 
111 ,131 291 ,060 10% 
122,899 297,715 9% 
125,489 311 ,920 9% 
112,148 309,286 9% 

94,564 355,301 14% 
104,487 399,431 14% 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Deferred Compensation Agency Fund 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 

Balance, 
September 1, 

1994 Additions 

Assets: 
Investments $ 196,575 $ 67,333 
Due from other funds 1,034 2,812 

Total assets $ 197,609 $ 70,145 

Liabilities - Deferred compensation 
benefits payable $ 197,609 $ 70,145 

40 

Exhibit B-6 

Balance, 
August 31, 

Deletions 1995 

$ 6,042 $ 257,866 
1,034 2,812 

$ 7,076 $ 260,678 

$ 7,076 $ 260,678 



General Fixed Assets Account Group 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Comparative Schedules of General Fixed Assets by Source 
August 31, 1995 and 1994 

1995 

General fixed assets: 
Land , buildings and improvements $ 8,787,070 
Machinery and equipment 1,113,161 
Automotive equipment 729,946 
Furniture and fixtures 131 ,040 

Total general fixed assets $10,761 ,217 

Investment in general fixed assets by source - General fund $10,761 ,217 
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1994 

$ 4,937,412 
995,299 
723,346 
134,635 

$ 6,790,692 

$ 6,790,692 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Schedule of Fixed Assets - By Function and Activity 
August 31, 1995 

Land, 
Buildings Machinery 

and Improve- and Automotive 
Function and Activity ments Equipment Equipment 

General government: 
General and 

administrative $ 8,500 ,230 $ 220,249 
Mayor and council 
Municipal court 
Administrator $ 12,386 
Finance 3,852 
Collector of revenue 
Attorney 
Planning 

commission 

Total general 
government 8,500 ,230 224 ,101 12,386 

Public safety: 
Police 233,841 215,617 
Police board 
Dispatching 190,609 
Building commission 9,991 65,584 

Total public safety 434.441 281 ,201 

Public works 61,239 56 ,568 

Highways and streets 310,899 253,007 

Parks and recreation 286,840 69 ,654 87,015 

Health and sanitation : 
Health department 715 12,494 
Rabies control 4,184 14,715 
Vector control 7,928 12,560 

Total health and 
sanitation 12,827 39,769 

Total general 
fixed 
assets $ 8,787,070 $ 1,113,161 $ 729,946 
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Furniture 
and 

Fixtures Total 

$ 23,599 $ 8,744,078 
4,662 4,662 
3,603 3,603 
2,834 15,220 

27,560 31 ,412 
10,199 10,199 
2,865 2,865 

2,587 2,587 

77,909 8,814,626 

34,280 483,738 
176 176 

1,288 191 ,897 
6,663 82,238 

42 ,407 758,049 

6,874 124,681 

974 564 ,880 

1,148 444,657 

1,728 14,937 
18,899 
20,488 

1,728 54 ,324 

$ 131 ,040 $10,761 ,217 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets -
By Function and Activity 
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1995 

General 
Fixed Assets 
August 31, 

Function and Activity 1994 Additions 

General government: 
General and 

administrative $ 4,800,367 $ 3,949,076 $ 
Mayor and council 4,662 
Municipal court 3,603 
Administrator 16,480 
Finance 31,412 
Collector of revenue 10,199 
Attorney 2,865 
Planning 

commission 2,587 

Total general 
government 4,872,175 3,949,076 

Public safety: 
Police 457,683 129,278 
Police board 176 
Dispatching 191 ,897 
Building 

commission 75 ,174 

Total public safety 724 ,930 129,278 

Public works 148,434 

Highways and streets 564,880 

Parks and recreation 426 ,540 14,793 

Health and sanitation: 
Health department 14,346 
Rabies control 18,899 
Vector control 20,488 

Total health and 
sanitation 53,733 

Total general 
fixed 
assets $ 6,790,692 $ 4,093,147 $ 
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General 
Fixed Assets 
August 31, 

Deductions Transfers 1995 

5,365 $ 8,744,078 
4,662 
3,603 

13,646 $ 12,386 15,220 
31 ,412 
10,199 
2,865 

2,587 

19,011 12,386 8,814,626 

15,417 (87,806) 483 ,738 
176 

191 ,897 

42,804 49,868 82,238 

58,221 (37,938) 758,049 

23,753 124,681 

564 ,880 

9,734 13,058 444 ,657 

11 ,903 12,494 14,937 
18,899 
20,488 

11 ,903 12,494 54 ,324 

122,622 $ $ 10,761 ,217 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Supplemental Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance 
for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 1995 

Pass-
Federal Grantor/ Total Through 
Pass-Through Grantor/ Grant CFDA(1) Agency 
Program Title Amount Number Number 

Major Federal Assistance Programs 

Federal Emergency Management Agency $ 1,459,801 995-DR-MO 
Community Development Block Grant 1,284,213 14-219 93-DR-10 
Federal Emergency Management Agency 2,387 ,600 83-519 DR-995 
Community Development Block Grant 2,060,000 14-219 94-DR-14 
Missouri Housing Development Commission 735 ,000 14-219 94-MHDC-112 

Total Federal Emergency Management Agency 

Nonmajor Federal Assistance Programs 

Federal Emergency Management Agency 68,377 1054-DR-MO 

EDA 1,950,000 11-307 05-19-61250 

U.S. Department of Justice: 
Division of Highway Safety 4,500 20-600 95-J6-03-71 
Division of Highway Safety 2,000 20-600 94-J6-03-52 
COPS FAST 75,000 16-710 95CFWX1072 

Total Department of Justice 

U.S. Department of Transportation : 
Federal Aid Urban Bridge Replacement 20-205 BRM-5461 (601) 
Federal Aid Urban Bridge Replacement 20-205 BRM-5474(602) 

Total Department of Transportation 

Environmental Protection Agency 66-458 C295097-01 
Environmental Protection Agency 66-458 C295097-02 

Total Environmental Protection Agency 

Total Federal Assistance 

(1) Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
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(Deferred)/ (Deferred)/ 
Accrued Disburse- Accrued 
Revenue, ments/ Revenue, 

August 31, Receipts or Expen- August 31, 
1994 Receivables ditures 1995 

$ (35,969) $ 389,940 $ 693,056 $ 267,147 
108,850 484,886 703,484 327,448 
102,169 1,470,353 1,344,384 (23,800) 

1,315,418 1,315,418 
497,647 497 647 

175 050 4158 244 4,553,989 570 795 

68377 68 377 

15 585 15 585 

2,835 2,835 
396 1,847 1,451 

14 727 14 727 

396 1 847 19 013 17 562 

17,970 17,970 
12 781 12 781 

30 751 30 751 

22,494 22,494 
58,593 58 593 

81 087 81 087 

$ 206,197 $ 4,309,555 $ 4.738,051 $ 634,693 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

General Governmental Expenditures by Function 
last ten fiscal years 

General Public 
Fiscal Year Government Safety 

1986 $ 771 ,026 $ 1,725,079 $ 
1987 916,611 1,808 ,796 
1988 1,059,869 1,956,097 
1989 1,066,971 2,160,608 
1990 1,163,727 2,026,376 
1991 1,136,027 2,100,552 
1992 1,561 ,120 2,311,619 
1993 1,414,608 2,428,800 
1994 2,990,274 2,652,954 
1995 6,005,996 2,860,774 

Public 
Works 

162,959 
192,557 
219,318 
233,505 
263,605 
250,707 
269,059 
295,634 
301 ,829 
306,690 

( 1) Capital outlay includes the construction of the municipal complex during fiscal years 1987 - 1989. 

Highways 
and 

Street 

$ 712,448 
672,446 
550,149 

1,340,155 
1,161 ,482 

627,779 
781 ,554 

1,002,916 
1,360,285 

946,103 

Funding for this project was provided through the proceeds of a capital lease in the amount of $2,420,000. 
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Parks and Health and Capital 
Recreation Sanitation Outlay (1) Total 

$ 228,280 $ 387,658 $ 3,987,450 
283,409 473,124 $ 960,654 5,307,597 
275,550 475,297 2,371,450 6,907,730 
265,166 463,420 1,051 ,515 6,581 ,340 
297,679 476,441 259,022 5,648,332 
298,359 508,555 21 ,047 4,943,026 
322,224 518,080 326,633 6,090,289 
353,331 545,650 664,119 6,705,058 
431,731 571 ,777 232,990 8,541 ,840 
421 ,626 624,088 490,526 11,655,803 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

General Governmental Revenues by Source 
last ten fiscal years 

Special Licenses 
Assess- and 

Fiscal Year Taxes ments Permits 

1986 $ 3,399,191 $ 53,780 $ 93,610 
1987 3,758,912 112,663 89,076 
1988 3,829,050 305,373 95,116 
1989 4,552,201 141 ,924 101,992 
1990 4,470,199 397,464 181 ,681 
1991 4,334,196 216,170 213,846 
1992 4,637,459 210,240 222,763 
1993 5,140,436 178,106 237,365 
1994 5,714,338 208,318 288,693 
1995 5,701 ,074 237,361 267,284 

Fines and 
Court 
Costs 

$ 64,021 
65,911 
88,724 
95,661 

127,560 
162,900 
192,010 
246,501 
252,962 
335,820 
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Inter- Charges 
Govern- for Miscel-
mental Services Interest laneous Total 

$ 244,952 $ 59,235 $ 95,854 $ 92,507 $ 4,103,150 
42,545 54,377 106,095 105,989 4,335,568 
3,496 51 ,487 237,450 175,349 4,786,045 

30,022 60,609 153,291 169,900 5,305,600 
29,307 78,036 109,340 148,569 5,542,156 
24,749 364,333 118,900 155,725 5,590,819 

427,276 499,956 135,320 187,160 6,512,184 
592,749 514,676 89,453 225,081 7,224,367 

1,707,256 537,164 122,505 322,927 9,154,163 
4,648,881 566,582 146,063 252,311 12,155,376 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source 
last ten fiscal years 

Property 
Fiscal Year Tax 

1986 $ 352,098 $ 
1987 351,1 02 
1988 363 ,697 
1989 406,281 
1990 427,325 
1991 439,575 
1992 457 ,042 
1993 477,296 
1994 491 ,016 
1995 488,468 

Public 
Utility 
Gross 

Sales Receipts 
Tax Tax 

1,765,189 $ 1,092,137 
2,016,855 1,171,057 
1,935,774 1,1 83,832 
2,655,760 1,145,833 
2,549,627 1,1 36,065 
2,315 ,553 1,203,407 
2,573 ,869 1,208,230 
2,969,250 1,244,833 
3,380,91 1 1,345 ,534 
3, 397,419 1,269,851 
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Table 2A 

Motor 
Fuel Tax Other Total 

$ 185,169 $ 4,598 $ 3,399,191 
212,040 7,858 3,758,912 
300,582 45 ,165 3,829,050 
312,342 31 ,985 4,552,201 
312,315 44 ,867 4,470,199 
299,449 76,212 4,334,196 
319,322 78,996 4,637,459 
361 ,306 87,751 5,140,436 
402,270 94,607 5,714,338 
443,743 101 ,593 5,701 ,074 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
last ten fiscal years 

Total 
Fiscal Year Tax Levy 

1986 $ 324,831 $ 
1987 320,485 
1988 335,341 
1989 368,506 
1990 403,939 
1991 422,135 
1992 456,743 
1993 474,443 
1994 490,378 
1995 486,110 

Current Tax 
Collections 

290,483 
286,073 
288,050 
329,469 
366 ,071 
305 ,261 
416,681 
331 ,877 
442,916 
471 ,523 

Percent Delinquent 
of Current Tax(and 

Taxes Penalties) 
Collected Collections 

89.4% $ 32,794 $ 
89.3% 39,609 
85.9% 49,176 
89.4% 31 ,680 
90.6% 37,462 
72.3% 134,643 
91 .2% 40,415 
70.0% 146,464 
90.3% 50,660 
97 .0% 20,944 
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Table 3 

Ratio of Ratio of 
Total Tax Delinquent 

Collections Outstanding Taxes to 
Total Tax to Total Delinquent Total 

Collections Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy 

323,277 99.5% $ 15,425 4.75% 
325,682 101 .6% 14,623 4.56% 
337,226 100.6% 16,305 4.86% 
361 ,149 98 .0% 22,626 6.14% 
403,533 99 .9% 26,941 6.67% 
439,904 104.2% 14,984 3.55% 
457,096 100.1% 17,069 3.74% 
478,341 100.8% 16,024 3.38% 
493,576 100.7% 15,220 3.10% 
492,467 101 .3% 11 ,395 2.34% 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
last ten fiscal years 

Assessed 
Fiscal Year Value 

1986 $ 72,971,899 
1987 73,051,612 
1988 76,787,372 
1989 83,407,445 
1990 90,727,362 
1991 94,888,430 
1992 97,179,362 
1993 98,785,800 
1994 101,989,700 
1995 104,735,900 

Table 4 

Ratio of 
Total Assessed 

Value to 
Estimated Total 

Actual Estimated 
Value Actual Value 

$ 323,612,367 22.5% 
325,440,367 22.4% 
334,733,706 22.9% 
361,485,478 23.1% 
389,306,290 23.3% 
409,022,336 23.2% 
423,109,883 23.0% 
428,748,081 23.0% 
444,160,674 23.0% 
458,432,133 22.8% 

Property has an assessed value to estimated actual value as follows: commercial real estate 32%, residential real estate 19%, agricultural real 
estate 12%, personal property 33-1/3%. 

The City does not collect tax on personal property and such data is therefore not included. 

Data for real property owned by exempt organizations is not included as is it not available. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Property Tax Rates Per $100 Assessed Value -
Direct and Overlapping Governments 
last ten fiscal years 

1995 1994 

City of Arnold $ 0.48 $ 0.48 $ 

Overlapping governments : 
State of Missouri 0.03 0.03 
Jefferson County 0.45 0.53 
Consolidated School No. 6 

of Jefferson County 3 03 2.98 
Rock Community Fire 

Protection District 0.70 0.67 
Rock Township 

Ambulance District 0.23 0.22 
The Junior College District 

of Jefferson County 0.22 0.21 
The Jefferson County 

Library District 0.20 0.20 

Total overlapping 
governments 4.86 4.84 

Total city and 
overlapping 
governments $ 5.34 $ 5.32 $ 

1993 1992 

0.48 $ 0.47 

0.03 0.03 
0.54 0.52 

2.98 2.93 

0.67 0.66 

0.22 0.21 

0.21 0.21 

0.20 0.20 

4.85 4.76 

5.33 $ 5.23 
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Table 

1991 1990 1989 1988 1987 1986 

$ 0.47 $ 0.47 $ 0.48 $ 0.48 $ 0.48 $ 0.48 

0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 
0.50 0.50 0.51 0.48 0.50 0.42 

306 2.92 2.92 2.93 2.95 1.98 

0.66 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.67 044 

0.21 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.13 

0.22 0.24 0.25 0.26 0.28 0.28 

0.20 

4.88 4.56 4.58 4.57 4.64 3.28 

$ 5.35 $ 5.03 $ 5.06 $ 5.05 $ 5.12 $ 3.76 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Principal Taxpayers 
August 31, 1995 

Taxpayer 

Union Electric Company 

Southwestern Bell Telephone 

Midwest Missouri Gas 

Valcour Development 

Metal Container Corporation 

Wal-Mart 

Red River Plaza 

Arnold Park Mall Associates 

Richardson Place DGR, LP 

Larry Jones 

Gramex 

Fox Valley Estates 

Table 6 

1995 
Type of Business Tax Paid 

Electric Utility $ 837,648 

Telephone Utility 247,804 

Gas Utility 184,399 

Shopping Center 18,307 

Aluminum Can Manufacturer 13,385 

Retail Store 8,878 

Shopping Center 8,832 

Shopping Center 6,912 

Apartment Complex 6,225 

Commercial Buildings 5,773 

Retail Store 5,255 

Commercial Complex 3,697 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Special Assessment Billings and Collections 
last ten fiscal years 

Fiscal Year 

1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

(1) Includes prepayments 

$ 

Special 
Assessment 

Billings 

24,661 
50,451 

114,281 
86 ,285 

170,806 
121,912 
114,832 
119,070 
117,229 
161 ,956 
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$ 

Special 
Assessments 

Collected111 

53,780 
112,663 
305,373 
141,924 
397,464 
216,170 
210,240 
178,106 
208,318 
237,361 

Table 7 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
August 31, 1995 

Assessed value for calendar year 1994: 
Real property 
Personal property 

Authorized debt limit 10% of assessed value 

Debt applicable to limitation : 
Total bonded debt 

Less exempt debt: 
Sewer revenue bonds 
Certificates of participation (municipal complex) 

Total debt applicable to limitation 

Legal debt margin 

$ 104,735,900 
35,136,452 

139,872,352 

5,205,500 

(3,295,500) 
(1,910,000) 

City 
Purposes 

Basic 
Limit(1) 

$ 13,987,235 

$13,987,235 

$ 104,735,900 
35,136,452 

139,872,352 

Table 8 

Street 
Improve­

ment 
Additional 

Limit(2) 

$13,987,235 

$13,987,235 

(1) Section 26(b) and (c) Article VI of the State constitution of 1945 permits any city, by vote of two-thirds of the qualified electors 
thereof voting thereon, to incur indebtedness for city purposes not to exceed 10% of the value of taxable tangible property therein 
as shown by the last completed assessment. 

(2) Section 26(d) Article VI of the State constitution of 1945 permits any city by a vote of two-thirds of the qualified electors thereof 
voting thereon, to become indebted not exceeding in the aggregate an additional 10% of the value of the taxable tangible property 
for the purpose of acquiring rights-of-way, constructing , extending and improving the streets and avenues and acquiring 
rights-of-ways, constructing , extending and improving sanitary or storm sewer systems. 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt -
General Obligation Bonds 
August 31, 1995 

Jurisdiction 

Direct - City of Arnold 

Overlapping: 
The Junior College District of Jefferson County 
Consolidated School District No . 6 of 

Jefferson County 
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Net General 
Obligation 

Bonded Debt 
Outstanding 

$ 5,360,000 

8,350,000 

$ 13,710,000 

Table 9 

Percentage Amount 
Applicable Applicable 

to City to City 

100.0% 

10.7% $ 572,445 

40.5% 3,385,376 

$ 3,957,821 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Revenue Bond Coverage -
Enterprise Fund 
last ten fiscal years 

Fiscal Year 

1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

$ 

(1) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation. 
(2) Represents sewer revenue bonds. 

Gross 
Revenues 

636,259 
769,750 
849,498 
845,739 
897,380 
906,103 
903,570 
978,024 

1,082,448 
1,113,170 

Net 
Revenue 
Available 

Operating for Debt 
Expenses(1) Service 

$ 460,605 $ 175,654 
458,133 311 ,617 
575,615 273,883 
573,225 272,514 
556,800 340,580 
515,658 390,445 
613,022 290,548 
623,508 354,516 
653,002 429,446 
697,938 415,232 
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Table 10 

Debt Service Reguirements j2} 

Principal Interest Total Coverage 

$ 65,000 $ 113,809 $ 178,809 0.98 
65,000 169,382 234,382 1.33 
70,000 163,762 233,762 1.17 
75,000 157,643 232,643 1.17 
85,000 151,022 236,022 1.44 

100,000 143,402 243,402 1.60 
95,000 146,059 241,059 1.21 

128,333 211,273 339,606 1 04 
595,000 291 ,358 886,358 0.48 
186,167 191,326 377,493 1.10 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Demographic Statistics 
(five-year intervals) 

Fiscal Year 

1980 
1985 
1990 
1995 

Data Sources: 

( 1) 
Population 

19,141 
19,545 
18,828 
20 ,053 

(2) 
Per Capita 

Income 

$ 6,960 
NIA 

12,689 
NIA 

(1) Census Bureau, City of Arnold Community Development Department 
(2) Census Bureau 
(3) Consolidated School District No. 6 
(4) Missouri Department of Labor 
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(2) 
Median 

Age 

29.7 
NIA 

31 .8 
NIA 

Table 11 

(2) 
Education 

Level (4) 
in Years (3) Unem-

of Formal School ployment 
Schooling Enrollment Rate 

12.2 NIA 7.4% 

NIA 8,614 7.6% 
12.0 9,252 9.0% 

NIA 9,507 5.2% 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Property Value and Construction 
last ten fiscal years 

Fiscal Year Commercial 

1986 $100,810,047 

1987 99,886,378 

1988 104,934,013 

1989 114,803,478 

1990 129,065,194 

1991 132,255,407 

1992 127,783,874 

1993 133,410,625 

1994 137,025,937 

1995 137,276,563 

Data Sources: 
(1) Estimated Actual Value from Table 4 
(2) City of Arnold Community Development Department 

Proeert}' Value 11} 

Residential Agriculture Total 

$ 222,540,279 $ 262,042 $323,612,368 

225,309,089 244,900 325,440,367 

229,600,526 199,167 334,733,706 

246,462,000 220,000 361,485,478 

259,965,263 275,833 389,306,290 

276,495,263 271 ,666 409,022,336 

295,056,842 269,167 423,109,883 

295,055,789 281,667 428,748,081 

304,074,737 3,060,000 444,160,674 

318,124,737 3,030,833 458,432,133 
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Table 12 

Commercial Residential 
Construction {2} Construction (2} 

Number Number 
of Units Value of Units Value 

14 $ 6,317,880 382 $ 8,960,075 

14 4,304,763 173 4,833,573 

11 2,627,429 155 4,544,094 

9 3,175,075 151 5,400,236 

10 8,529,276 139 5,782,795 

15 3,675,889 98 4,363,570 

8 1,976,000 93 4,767,052 

7 1,509,600 118 6,492,665 

4 775,000 211 14,398,494 

7 1,320,011 145 10,856,574 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Miscellaneous Statistics 
August 31, 1995 

Date of incorporation 
Form of government 
Number of full-time employees (excluding police) 
Area in square miles 

City of Arnold facilities and services: 
Miles of streets 

Culture and recreation : 
Community centers 
Parks 
Park acreage 
Swimming pools 
Tennis courts 

Police protection : 
Number of stations 
Number of commissioned police officers 
Number of other police personnel 
Number of patrol units 

Number of law violations: 
Physical arrests 
Traffic violations 

Sewerage system: 
Miles of sanitary sewers 
Miles of storm sewers 
Number of treatment plants 
Number of pumping stations 
Number of service connections 
Daily average treatment in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity in gallons 

Facilities and services not included in the 
reporting entity: 

Education : 
Number of elementary schools 
Number of elementary school instructors 
Number of secondary schools 
Number of secondary school instructors 
Number of community college 

Continued 
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Table 13 

September 1972 
Mayor/Council/ Administrator 

52 
11 . 5 

52.9 

1 
4 

229 
1 
1 

1 
41 
12 
16 

1,251 
5,600 

74.8 
7.3 

1 
6 

6,650 
1.4 million 
3.0 million 

9 
283 

4 
207 

1 



City of Arnold, Missouri 

Miscellaneous Statistics, Continued 

Facilities and services not included in the 
reporting entity, continued: 

Fire protection: 
Number of stations 
Number of full-time fire personnel and officers 
Number of volunteer fire personnel 
Number of calls answered 
Number of inspections conducted 

Emergency ambulance services: 
Number of stations 
Number of emergency medical personnel and officers 
Number of ambulance units 
Number of calls answered 

Water system: 
Miles of water mains 
Number of service connections 
Number of fire hydrants 
Daily average consumption in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity in gallons 
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Table 13, 
Continued 

3 
39 
40 

2,211 
1,986 

1 
33 

4 
2,632 

89.3 
5,800 

576 
2.1 million 
2.7 million 



I Coopers 
&Lybrand 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. 

a profess,onal services t,rm 

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
Based on an Audit of General Purpose Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance With 
Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Arnold, Missouri : 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Arnold, Missouri as of and 
for the year ended August 31 , 1995, and have issued our report thereon dated November 21 , 1995 . 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement . 

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the City of Arnold, Missouri is 
the responsibility of the City of Arnold, Missouri's management. As part of obtaining reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed 
tests of the City of Arnold, Missouri's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants. However, our objective was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance 
with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported 
herein under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended for the information of the Mayor, City Council, management and the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 

distribution is not limited. 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 21 , 1995 

~.il~ l,L.P. 
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I 
Coopers 
&Lybrand I 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. 

a professional services firm 

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
With Specific Requirements Applicable to Major 
Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Arnold, Missouri: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Arnold, Missouri, as of and 
for the year ended August 31 , 1995 and have issued our report thereon dated November 21 , 1995 _ 

We have also audited the City of Arnold, Missouri's compliance with the requirements governing 
types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; matching or level of effort; reporting requirements; 
public hearings held on proposed use of federal financial assistance and hiring requirements of low to 

moderate income individuals that are applicable to its major federal financial assistance program and 
reimbursements, which are identified in the schedule of federal financial assistance, for the year ended 
August 31 , 1995 . The management of the City of Arnold, Missouri is responsible for the City of 
Arnold, Missouri's compliance with those requirements . Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on compliance with those requirements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards 
and Office Management and Budget Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to 
above occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Arnold, 
Missouri's compliance with those requirements We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion the City of Arnold, Missouri complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; matching or level of effort; reporting 
requirements; claims for reimbursements; public hearing held on proposed use of federal financial 
assistance and hiring requirements of low to moderate income individuals, that are applicable to its 
major federal financial assistance program, for the year ended August 31 , 1995 . 
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This report is intended for the information of the Mayor, City Council, management and the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 21, 1995 
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Coopers 
&Lybrand I 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. 

a professional services firm 

R:port of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
With the General Requirements Applicable to Major 
Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Arnold, Missouri : 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Arnold Missouri as of and 
for the year ended August 31 , 1995 and have issued our report thereon dated No~ember 21' 1995 

' . 

We ~ave applied _procedur~s to test the C~ty of_ Arnold, Missouri's compliance with the following 
reqmrements apphcab~e to its federal financial assistance program, which is identified in the schedule 
of federal financial assistance, for the year ended August 31 , 1995 . The general requirements are: 

Political activity 
Civil rights 
Drug free workplace 
Cash management 
Federal financial reports 
Davis-Bacon Act 
Allowable costs/Cost principles 

Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and 
Budget's Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments. Our 
procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of 
an opinion on the City of Arnold, Missouri's compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding 
paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of 
noncompliance with the requirements listed in the second paragraph of this report . With respect to 
items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City of Arnold, 
Missouri had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements . However, the results of 
our procedures disclosed immaterial instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are 
described in the accomanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

This report is intended for the information of the Mayor, Cit~ Council, management and the Fede~al 
Emergency Management Agency. However, this report 1s a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 21 , 1995 
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Coopers 
&Lybrand 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. 

a profess,onal services t,rm 

Report of Independent Accountants on the 
Internal Control Structure Based on an Audit of the 
General Purpose Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Arnold, Missouri : 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Arnold, Missouri, as of and 
for the year ended August 31, 1995, and have issued our report thereon dated November 21 , 1995 _ 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

The management of the City of Arnold, Missouri is responsible for establishing and maintaining an 
internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are 
required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and 
procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use 
or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and 
recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, 
errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation 
of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and 
procedures may deteriorate. 

In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Arnold, Missouri for the year ended August 31, 1995, we obtained an understanding of the internal 
control structure. With respect to the internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the 
design of relevant policies and whether they have been placed in operation and we assessed control 
risk in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
general purpose financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control structure. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
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Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the 
internal control structure that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a reportable condition in 
which the design or operation of one or more of the specific internal control structure elements does 
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a 
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions . We noted no 
matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be material 
weaknesses as defined above. 

This report is intended for the information of the Mayor, City Council, management and the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 21, 1995 
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Coopers 
&Lybrand 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. 

a professional services firm 

Report of Independent Accountants on the Internal 
Control Structure Used in Administering Federal 
Financial Assistance Programs 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Arnold, Missouri : 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Arnold, Missouri, as of and 
for the year ended August 31, 1995 and have issued our report thereon dated November 21 , 1995 . 
We have also audited the City of Arnold, Missouri's compliance with requirements applicable to 
major federal financial assistance programs and have issued our report thereon dated November 21 , 
1995 . 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of 
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. Those 
standards and 0MB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and about whether 
the City of Arnold, Missouri complied with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would 
be material to a major federal financial assistance program. 

In planning and performing our audit for the year ended August 31 , 1995, we considered the internal 
control structure of the City of Arnold, Missouri in order to determine our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Arnold, Missouri and on the compliance of the City of Arnold, Missouri with requirements applicable 
to major programs and to report on the internal control structure in accordance with 0MB Circular 
A-128 . This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policies and procedures 
relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to federal financial assistance programs. We 
have addressed internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to our audit of the general 
purpose financial statements in a separate report dated November 21, 1995 . 

The management of the City of Arnold, Missouri is responsible for establishing and maintaining an 
internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are 
required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and 
procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use 
or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and 
recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and federal financial assistance programs are managed 
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

66 

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. is a member of Coopers & Lybrand International. a limited liability association incorporated in Switzerland. 



Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors, irregularities, or instances of 
noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the 
structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures 
may deteriorate. 

For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and 
procedures used in administering federal financial assistance programs in the following categories: 

General Requirements 

Political activity 
Civil rights 
Cash management 
Federal financial reports 
Drug-free workplace 
Davis-Bacon Act 
Allowable costs/Cost principles 

Specific Requirements 

Types of services 
Eligibility 
Matching, level of effort, or earmarking 
Reporting 
Special requirements 

For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained an understanding of the 
design of relevant policies and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in 
operation, and we assessed control risk . 

During the year ended August 31 , 1995, the City of Arnold, Missouri expended 96% of its total 
federal financial assistance under major federal financial assistance programs. 

We performed tests of controls, as required by 0MB Circular A-128, to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the design and operation of internal control structure policies and procedures that we considered 
relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements and general 
requirements that are applicable to the City of Arnold, Missouri's major federal financial assistance 
program, which is identified in the accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance. Our 
procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control 
structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
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Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the 
internal control structure that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a reportable condition in 
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not 
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regulations that would be 
material to a federal financial assistance program may occur and not be detected within a timely 
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions . We noted no 
matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be material 
weaknesses as defined above. 

This report is intended for the information of the Mayor, City Council, management and the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 21 , 1995 
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City of Arnold, Missouri 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
for the year ended August 31, 1995 

Program Area 

Drug Free Workplace Act 

Davis-Bacon Act 

Finding 

As of year-end, the City's policy manual was not in 
compliance with Drug Free Workplace Act and an 
ongoing drug-free awareness program had not been put 
in place. A revision to the City's policy is in process to 
comply with all state and federal rules. 

The City noted through review of payroll records of a 
subcontractor that the prevailing wage rates as required 
by the Davis-Bacon Act and the contract with the City 
were not being paid by the subcontractor. The 
discovery was referred by the City to the Department of 
Labor who is performing an investigation into possible 
criminal action by the subcontractor. It appears that the 
City's monitoring of subcontractors is being performed 
effectively. 

* Amount of questioned cost is not determinable. 
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Questioned 
Cost 

* 

* 
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